# **ORIGINAL**

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED SID J. WHITE

MAY 1 1997

No.: 90,439

CLERK, REPARK COURT

DAVID L. TAYLOR,

Petitioner,

VS.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

On Notice to Invoke Discretionary Reivew of a Decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

Wm. J. Sheppard, Esquire Florida Bar No.: 109154 Richard W. Smith, Esquire Florida Bar No.: 013943 SHEPPARD AND WHITE, P.A. 215 Washington Street Jacksonville, Florida 32202 Telephone: (904) 356-9661

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

###

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Court should invoke its discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv) to review the decision below of the Fifth District Court of Appeal because said opinion is in direct and express conflict with two other district courts of appeal on the same question of law.

WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD INVOKE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION AS THE DECISION BELOW EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISIONS OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN <u>JACKSON V. STATE</u>, 654 **SO.2D** 234 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1995) AND THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN <u>CECIL V. STATE</u>, 614 **SO.2D** 603 (FLA. 1ST DCA 1993).

pursuant to Fla.R.App.P. 9.030 (a) (2) (A) (iv), this Court should invoke its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision below of the Fifth District Court of Appeal. On June 30, 1995, the petitioner, David Taylor, was sentenced to 10 years probation as a downward departure on the charge of Driving Under the Influence Resulting in Serious Bodily Injury, a third degree felony. § 316.193, Fla. Stat. (1993). Mr. Taylor thereafter violated his probation as indicated in the Violation of Probation of December 22, 1995. On May 31, 1996, Mr. Taylor's probation was revoked and he was subsequently sentenced to incarceration for 38 months at a state facility. The petitioner argued on appeal that his probation could not be revoked as the 10 year sentence was illegal for exceeding the statutory maximum of 5 years for a third degree felony. § 775.082(3) (d), Fla. Stat. (1993).

In support of his argument, the petitioner relied on <u>Jackson</u>

<u>v. State</u>, 654 **So.2d** 234 **(Fla.** 4th DCA 1995). In <u>Jackson</u>, the district court held that:

Since appellant was serving an illegal sentence, the trial court could not charge appellant with a violation of the terms of his probation nor revoke his probation.

\* \* \*

We... hold that a defendant may not be violated on a condition of probation or

community control while serving an illegal sentence.

Id. at 236. Further, relying on <u>Jackson</u> and <u>Cecil v. State</u>, 614 So.2d 603 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993), the petitioner argued that it was irrelevant whether the revocation of probation occurred within the so-called "legal" portion of the sentence; that is, during the initial five years.

The district court below rejected petitioner's arguments and affirmed petitioner's sentence. The district court held that although it recognized that petitioner's original sentence was illegal in that it exceeded the maximum statutory authority, the sentence was legal as the violation occurred during the first five This conclusion by the Fifth District expressly and years. directly conflicts with the holdings of the Fourth District Court's decision in Jackson v. State, 654 So.3d 234 (Fla. 4th DCA 1995) and the First District Court's decision in Cecil v. State, 614 So.2d Indeed, the district court below 1st DCA 1993). 603 (Fla. specifically "acknowledge[d] conflict with <u>Jackson v. State</u>, 654 So.2d 234 (Fla. 4th DCA 1995)."

A decision which applies a rule of law to procure a different result in a case involving controlling facts substantially similar to those in a prior decision of this Court, demonstrates an express and direct conflict. See Mancini v. State, 312 So.2d 732, 733 (Fla. 1975); Kincaid v. World Ins., Co., 157 So.2d 517 (Fla. 1963); Nielsen v. Citv of Sarasota, 117 So. 731 (Fla. 1960). The facts of the instant case are substantially similar to the facts in Jackson and Cecil. However, the results and decisions are directly

contrary to each other. Accordingly, petitioner seeks to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

#### CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing reasons, this Court should invoke its jurisdiction Fla.R.App.P. discretionary pursuant to 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).