# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED SID J. WHITE MAY 22 1997

DAVID L. TAYLOR,

Petitioner,

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By
Chief Deputy Clerk

v.

Case No. 90,439

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON NOTICE TO INVOKE DISCRETIONARY REVIEW
OF A DECISION OF THE
FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

# JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

DAVID H. FOXMAN
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Florida Bar No. 59013
444 Seabreeze Boulevard
Fifth Floor
Daytona Beach, Florida 32118
(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTSii
TABLE OF AUTHORITIESiii
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT
THIS HONORABLE COURT SHOULD DECLINE TO INVOKE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO HEAR THIS
CASE2
CONCLUSION4
CEPTIFICATE OF SERVICE

# TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

CASES CITED:
<u>Cecil v. State</u> , 614 So. 2d 603 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993)
<pre>Harris v. State, 645 So. 2d 386 (Fla. 1994),      citing U.S. v. DiFrancesco, 449 U.S. 117 (1980),      and Bozza v. U.S., 330 U.S. 160 (1947)</pre>
<u>Jackson v. State</u> , 654 So. 2d 234 (Fla. 4th DCA 1995)
<u>Taylor v. State</u> , 22 Fla. L. Weekly D815  (Fla. 5th DCA Mar. 27, 1997)2
OTHER AUTHORITIES CITED:
Article V, Section 3(b)(4), Florida Constitution2-3
Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv)2
Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(vi)3
Section 775.082(3)(d), Florida Statutes (1993)3

# SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Honorable Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction over this case. The Fifth District's opinion does not conflict with Cecil v. State, 614 So. 2d 603 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993). Even though the Fifth District acknowledged conflict with Jackson v. State, 654 So. 2d 234 (Fla. 4th DCA 1995), it did not certify direct conflict, suggesting that the court found further review inappropriate or unnecessary. This Court does not need to exercise its discretionary review because the Fifth District reached the correct and logical result.

### ARGUMENT

THIS HONORABLE COURT SHOULD DECLINE TO INVOKE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO HEAR THIS CASE.

Petitioner David L. Taylor asks this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal, on the ground that it expressly and directly conflicts with <u>Jackson v. State</u>, 654 So. 2d 234 (Fla. 4th DCA 1995), and <u>Cecil v. State</u>, 614 So. 2d 603 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993). See, Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). The State's position is that the Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case.

The Fifth District's opinion does not conflict with <u>Cecil</u>.

The Fifth held that a defendant who violates his probation during the legal portion of an illegal sentence is estopped to challenge the legality of the sentence after he has knowingly taken advantage of its benefits. <u>Taylor v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D815 (Fla. 5th DCA Mar. 27, 1997). The <u>Cecil</u> court does not appear to have even considered, much less ruled upon, this issue.

Despite "acknowledg[ing]" conflict with <u>Jackson</u>, the Fifth District did not certify direct conflict. <u>See</u>, Art. V, §

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Copies of <u>Jackson</u>, <u>Cecil</u>, and the Fifth District's opinion in this case are included in the attached appendix.

3(b)(4), Fla. Const.; Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(vi). Thus, it is reasonable to infer that the Fifth determined further review to be inappropriate or unnecessary in this case.

Additionally, discretionary review is inappropriate here since the Fifth reached the only reasonable result possible.

Taylor was originally sentenced to ten years probation on a third degree felony on June 30, 1995. (R.67-68). His probation was revoked less than a year into the sentence and he was sentenced to thirty-eight months incarceration. (R.61).

Hence, the combined terms of probation served and incarceration do not exceed the five-year statutory maximum sentence for third degree felonies. \$775.082(3)(d), Fla. Stat. (1993). Yet Taylor maintains that his probation could not be revoked because his original sentence was illegal. This position is contrary to the principle that sentencing is not a game in which one wrong move by the trial court results in immunity for the defendant. Harris v. State, 645 So. 2d 386 (Fla. 1994), citing U.S. v. DiFrancesco, 449 U.S. 117, 101 S.Ct. 426, 66 L.Ed.2d 328 (1980), and Bozza v. U.S., 330 U.S. 160, 67 S.Ct. 645, 91 L.Ed.818 (1947).

## CONCLUSION

BASED ON THE foregoing argument and authority, the State respectfully requests that this Honorable Court decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case.

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

DAVID H. FOXMAN

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

Fla. Bar No. 59013

444 Seabreeze Boulevard

Fifth Floor

Daytona Beach, FL 32118

(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE